
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, March 14, 2018 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the February 28, 2018 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for February 2018.

3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to and Directing the City
Manager to Execute the Construction Contract with VAS Security Systems, Inc. for the Access
Control Project (CIP 983).

4. Motion Accepting the 2017 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Including
the Housing Element.

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Supporting the Reducing Crime and Keeping California Safe Act of
2018. 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. MIDYEAR BUDGET REVIEW

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Budget Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2017-
18.

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 

City Manager  



Page 2 of 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, February 28, 2018 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Raquel Gonzalez called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:04 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Council 
Members John Irish Goodwin, Diana Colvin and Helen Fisicaro were present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
Kirk Stratton, Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin and Administrative Technician Darcy De Leon were 
in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Gonzalez stated, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session meeting.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Gonzalez asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho introduced new Recreation Coordinator Angelika 
Abellana. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment period at 7:10 p.m. Marguerite Machen, 
Commission on the Status of Women for San Mateo County presented an upcoming event: 
Women’s Leadership Conference & Women’s Hall of Fame on March 24, 2018. The Mayor 
closed the public comment period at 7:13 p.m. 

Item #1



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the February 14, 2018 Regular Meeting. 

Action: Vice Mayor del Rosario moved to approve the Consent Calendar item #1; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

2. ACCEPT AUDITOR REPORTS FOR FY 2016-17 

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report along with Auditor Michael O’Connor 
from R.J. Ricciardi. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment period at 7:24 p.m. and 
seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public comment. Council discussion 
followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Accepting Auditor’s Reports 
and Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017; the motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

 

3. ADDITIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE COLMA PARKING CODE 

Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the 
public comment period at 7:36 p.m. Lety, Crystal and Alex Gomez made comments. The 
Mayor closed the public comment period at 8:08 p.m. Council discussion followed. Council 
requested Article 5 be eliminated from the resolution.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Amending the Colma 
Parking Code Relating to the Stopping, Standing or Parking of Vehicles in Various Locations 
within the Town of Colma, with requested changes; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

4. TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX (TOT) BALLOT MEASURE 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public 
comment period at 8:32 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Adopt a Resolution Calling for the Placement 
of a General Tax Measure to be Held at the November 6, 2018 General Municipal Election 
for the Submission to the Qualified Voters of a Proposed Ordinance Enacting a Twelve 
Percent (12%) Transient Occupancy Tax on Hotel Occupancies within the Town of Colma 
Until Ended by Voters, and Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Requesting the Board of 
Supervisors of San Mateo County to Consolidate a General Municipal Election to be Held on 
November 6, 2018 with the Statewide General Election to be Held on the Same Date 
Pursuant to Section 10403 of the Elections Code; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 
del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

 
Action: Vice Mayor del Rosario moved to Adopt a Resolution Providing for the Filing of 
Primary and Rebuttal Arguments and Setting Rules for the Filing of Written Arguments 
Regarding a Town Measure to be Submitted to the Qualified Voters at the November 6, 
2018 General Municipal Election; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

5. TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX (TOT) BALLOT MEASURE 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public 
comment period at 8:56 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

This item is for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be on Wednesday, March 14, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 
and Wednesday, March 28, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

Raquel Gonzalez 
 Chamber of Commerce Business Breakfast, 2/23/18 
 Council of Cities, hosted by San Mateo County, 2/23/18 
 
Helen Fisicaro 
 Chamber of Commerce Business Breakfast, 2/23/18 

City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report: 

• Stop light working properly on El Camino Real at B Street.  
• Installed larger “right turn only” sign on C Street 
• AB 1234 training needs to be done by June. In-person and online options will be 

available. 
• City Manager will be on-call for possible jury duty. 
• Ed Harper service will be on March 1, 2018 at Cypress Cemetery. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Gonzalez adjourned the meeting at 9:16 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Darcy De Leon 



Item #2































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Access Control Contract Award  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2018 

SUBJECT: Notice of Award – Access Control Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH VAS SECURITY 
SYSTEMS, INC. FOR THE ACCESS CONTROL PROJECT (CIP 983).  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution will award the construction contract for the Access Control Project - 
CIP 983 (“Project”) to VAS Security Systems, Inc.  Upon review of all submitted bids, Staff has 
determined that VAS Security Systems, Inc has provided the lowest responsive bid for the 
Project rebid; sealed bids were publicly opened on March 7, 2018 at 10 a.m.   

Staff recommends that the City Council award the Access Control construction contract; and 
direct the City Manager to execute the construction contract with VAS Security Systems, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Council approved budget for the Project is $315,000.00; the lowest responsive bid amount 
of $233,081.56 is WITHIN the appropriated budget amount stated.  Staff recommends that a 
10% Construction Contingency of $23,308.16 be held by the Town to be used in the event of 
unforeseen condition and/or Town directed changes after contract award.  Staff recommends 
City Council authorize the City Manager to approve use of the Construction Contingency. 

BACKGROUND 

At the Council Meeting held on December 13, 2017, the City Council directed Staff to proceed 
with bidding the Project.  Project plans, specification and bid documents were posted on the Town 
Website, a local newspaper, and with multiple plan houses on December 15, 2017.  A non-
mandatory pre-bid conference was held on Thursday, January 4, 2018 at 10 a.m.  A bid addendum 
was posted to the required agencies (with the exception of the Town’s Website) on Wednesday, 
January 17, 2018.  Five (5) sealed bids were publicly opened on Tuesday, January 23, 2018 at 

Item #3



Staff Report Access Control Contract Award   Page 2 of 3 
 

2:00 p.m.  A responsive bid was not determined per the initial bid opening, therefore, at the 
February 14, 2018 City Council Meeting, City Council approved Staff’s recommendation to reject 
all bids and rebid the project.  

Staff then proceeded in the re-bid process.   Bid documents were made available per the Town’s 
formal bidding process on February 15, 2018, and sealed bids were received on March 7, 2018 
at 10 a.m.   

ANALYSIS 

The following bids were received for the Project:  

1. VAS Security Systems, Inc   $233,081.56 

2. Johnson Controls    $249,453.00 

3. Kratos      $304,781.84 

4. Cal Coast Telecom    $305,365.00 

5. Siemens Industry    $331,700.00 

6. Structure Works    $361,288.18 

Staff reviewed all submitted bids and determined VAS Security Systems, Inc is the lowest 
responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid in the amount of $233,081.56. 

Staff analyzed each bid package thoroughly, reviewing bid items line by line to ensure 
completeness, accuracy and responsiveness to the bid documents.  Staff also contacted 
references provided by bidders in an effort to ensure that the bidders are responsible and 
reliable.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
Approval of the proposed resolution is consistent with the City Council’s value of FAIRNESS, 
treating all submitted bids in a fair and equitable manner. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could reject the recommended bid and direct staff to re-bid the Project. This is 
not recommended, rebidding the Project would delay the opening of the new Town Hall facility.  
The “head end” (Definition: equipment which receives communications signals for 
distribution to other locations) of the Access Control system will be installed in the new 
Town Hall facility. The Access Control System is not only critical to the opening of Town Hall, 
but the new Access Control System also operates the Colma Police Station. To have both 
facilities up and running in conjunction with each other, the system must be installed in 
accordance with the Town Hall Construction Schedule.  
 



Staff Report Access Control Contract Award   Page 3 of 3 
 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that Council adopt this resolution awarding a construction contract to and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute a Construction Contract with VAS Security Systems, Inc 
for the Project.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. VAS Bid Package (Lowest Responsive Bid)  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2018-___, Access Control Contract Award Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH VAS SECURITY 

SYSTEMS, INC. FOR THE ACCESS CONTROL PROJECT (CIP 983) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma opened bids for the Access Control Project – CIP 983 (“Project”) on
March 7, 2018. 

(b) Town Staff determined that VAS Security Systems, Inc. is the lowest responsible bidder 
submitting a responsive bid in the amount of $233,081.56. 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council finds that VAS Security Systems, Inc. is the lowest responsible bidder
submitting a responsive bid. 

3. Order

(a) Award of the construction contract for the Project in the amount of $233,081.56 is hereby
made to VAS Security Systems, Inc. 

(c) The construction contract for the Project between the Town of Colma and VAS Security 
Systems, Inc., a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is approved by the City Council of the 
Town of Colma. 

(d) The City Manager is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such minor technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and 
the City Attorney. 

(e) A Town controlled ten percent (10%) construction contingency in the amount of 
$23,308.16 to be used in the event of unforeseen conditions and certain allowance items is 
established for the Project, and the City Manager is authorized to approve use of the construction 
contingency. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res. 2018-___, Access Control Contract Award  Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on March 14, 2018 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      

Joanne del Rosario, Vice Mayor       

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro       

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally 0 0    

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



Attachment B



















































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – 2017 General Plan Annual Report Page 1 of 4 
March 14, 2018 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2018 

SUBJECT: 2017 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

MOTION ACCEPTING THE 2017 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
THE GENERAL PLAN, INCLUDING THE HOUSING ELEMENT  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Each year, the town is required to submit annual reports on the implementation of the 
General Plan and Housing Element to the state. Prior to staff sending the report to the 
state, the City Council must accept the report. As shown in the attached General Plan 
Implementation Status Sheets, there were several General Plan policies that were 
furthered this year.  The most significant actions taken in 2017 were the approval of 
Affordable Housing Impact Fees and amendments to the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 
ordinance to comply with state law, both further the goals of the Housing Element. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The preparation of the 2017 Annual Report on the status of implementation to the General 
Plan, does not have an impact on the Town’s adopted budget. 

BACKGROUND 

California Government Code Section 65400 requires that an Annual Report be prepared 
that details the status of implementation of the General Plan. A separate report is required 
for the status of the Housing Element. This report is to be submitted to the City Council, 
the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, and the California Department of Housing 
and Community Development. This report is required to include details of the progress 
toward implementation of each of the elements within the General Plan.  

A city’s General Plan serves as the overall guide and vision for all of the community’s land 
use and development activities. Due to the fact that a General Plan requires periodic 

Item #4



Staff Report – 2017 General Plan Annual Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 14, 2018 

updates to accurately reflect changes in values and priorities of a community, it is 
important that local jurisdictions review their General Plans and the status of 
implementation of the measures included in each element of the Plan. It is the goal of this 
Annual Report to provide a tool for this review. 

The General Plan contains the seven State required elements: Land Use, Circulation, 
Housing, Open Space/Conservation, Noise and Safety. The law does not require specific 
time limits on updates to the General Plan, with the exception of the Housing Element. 
However, it is essential that a community’s General Plan is current and consistent with 
zoning regulations and changes within the community. As the City Council is aware, most 
of Colma’s General Plan dates back to 1999 and is in need of updating. Over the past 
calendar year, Staff has also made progress on the 2035 General Plan update.  

ANALYSIS 

Attached is a table that details each of the policies set forth in elements of the General 
Plan. The tables contain the implementation measure for each policy along with a status 
update for each policy. Many of the polices are implemented on a case by case basis and 
require ongoing implementation as projects are submitted to staff for review. However, 
some policies are quite outdated and show the age of our General Plan and are evidence 
of our need for a General Plan update. The discussion below highlights actions by element 
(only elements where a significant action occurred are listed): 

Housing Element 

The following list summarizes the highlights of the Housing Element: 

• The application for a 66-unit veteran’s affordable housing project was approved. The 
project is scheduled to be completed in 2019. Since the building permit was issued in 
early 2018, the Town will be able to report the project in next year’s annual report. 
The project will satisfy not only the Town’s entire regional housing number (59) for 
this housing cycle, but will also satisfy the entire affordable housing production goal 
for the 8-year Housing Element cycle. 

• The City Council adopted Housing Impact Fees for commercial and residential 
development to provide funds for affordable housing development.  

• The Town amended its Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) ordinance, consistent with 
state law. 

• The City Council approved the subdivision of the Tealdi greenhouse lots on B Street. 
9 new lots have been created, 8 of which are intended for market-rate new single-
family dwelling units.  Six of the building permits were issued in 2017 and are 
included in the report to the state. 

• Colma continues to provide funding to programs such as the Human Investment 
Project, and Lifemoves as discussed in the Housing Element.  

• The number of section 8 units in the Town remains at 8 units between 2016 and 
2017.  

 



Staff Report – 2017 General Plan Annual Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 14, 2018 

Additional information about Housing Element compliance can be found in Tables A-C, 
attached. Since this is a table generated through the state HCD website, there are typing 
errors generated by their system that cannot be corrected.  

Circulation Element  

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Circulation Element. 
However, the Town is moving forward with improvement plans for Mission Road and 
Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue. The Town also is working on a Systemic Safety 
Analysis Report (SSAR) to identify safety improvements in Colma.  

Land Use Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Land Use Element. An 
amendment was made to the element to allow for vehicle storage in cemetery designated 
areas.  

Open Space and Conservation Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Open Space and 
Conservation Element 

Noise Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Noise Element.  

Safety Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Safety Element.   

Historical Resources Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Historical Resources 
Element. The new draft of the Historical Resources Element will be folded into the 
amended General Plan prior to its review and adoption. Historic rehabilitation of the Holy 
Cross pump station is currently under way.  

Council Adopted Values 

The Annual Report on the General Plan complies with the Council’s commitment to 
Responsibility  through the periodic review of the implementation of adopted policies 
and programs. 

Sustainability Impact 

A motion on accepting the 2017 annual report on the implementation of the general 
plan will have no impact on sustainability.  
 
 



Staff Report – 2017 General Plan Annual Report  Page 4 of 4 
March 14, 2018 

Alternatives  

1. The City Council could take no action. Doing so is not recommended, however, 
because the Town would not be in compliance with the requirements of Government 
Code Section 65400. 
 

2. The City Council could provide direction to staff to make changes in the General Plan 
Annual Report and forward the report to the state. 

 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council, by motion, accept the 2017 Annual Report on the 
status of Implementation of the General Plan and Housing Element. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2017 Annual Report on the Implementation of the Housing Element, including Tables 
A-C 

B. 2017 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Remaining Elements 



Attachment A































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B



































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – Resolution Supporting Keep California Safe Act 2018  Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\30634700.1  

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2018 

SUBJECT: Supporting the Reducing Crime and Keeping California Safe Act of 2018 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE REDUCING CRIME AND KEEPING CALIFORNIA SAFE 
ACT OF 2018. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The California Safety Partnership Issues Committee, a coalition of crime victims, law 
enforcement, business owners, and public safety leaders is working on a measure to fix three 
related problems created by recent laws that have threatened the public safety of Californians 
and their children. The goal is to work collaboratively to achieve success to reduce the 
unintended consequences that have negatively impacted public safety in communities 
throughout California with the adoption of AB 109, Prop 47 and Prop 57. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND 

Between 2014 and 2016, California had the second highest increase in theft and property 
related crimes in the United States, while most states have seen a steady decline. According to 
the California Department of Justice, the value of property stolen in 2015 was $2.5 billion with 
an increase of 13 percent since 2014, the largest increase in the last ten years. 

Item #5



Staff Report – Resolution Supporting Keep California Safe Act 2018  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\30634700.1  

The measure will: 

A) Reform the parole system so violent felons are not released early from prison, 
strengthen oversight of post release community supervision, and tighten penalties for 
violations of terms of post release community supervision; 

B) Reform theft laws to restore accountability for serial thieves and organized theft rings; 
and 

C) Expand DNA collection from persons convicted of drug, theft, and domestic violence 
related crimes to help solve violent crimes and exonerate the innocent. 

Support from local governments will crack down on repeat offenders and protect our most 
vulnerable victims from dangerous individuals who take advantage of our laws, our businesses, 
and our communities. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The resolution to support The Reducing Crime and Keeping California Safe Act of 2018 is the 
responsible thing to do as it supports a state wide initiative to reduce crime and reform laws. 
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution supporting the Reducing Crime and 
Keeping California Safe Act of 2018. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 

 



Res 2018-___, Keep California Safe Act 2018 Page 1 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE REDUCING CRIME 
AND KEEPING CALIFORNIA SAFE ACT OF 2018 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Protecting every person in our state, including our most vulnerable children, from 
violent crime is of the utmost importance. Murderers, rapists, child molesters and 
other violent criminals should not be released early from prison. 

(b) Since 2014, California has had a larger increase in violent crime than the rest of 
the United States. Since 2013, violent crime in Los Angeles has increased 69.5%. 
Violent crime in Sacramento rose faster during the first six months of 2015 than 
in any of the 25 largest U.S. cities tracked by the FBI. 

(c) The FBI Preliminary Semiannual Uniform Crime Report for 2017, which tracks 
crimes committed during the first six months of the past year in U. S. cities with 
populations over 100,000, indicates that last year violent crime increased again 
in most of California’s largest cities. 

(d) Recent changes to parole laws allowed the early release of dangerous criminals 
by the law’s failure to define certain crimes as “violent.” These changes allowed 
individuals convicted of sex trafficking of children, rape of an unconscious 
person, felony assault with a deadly weapon, battery on a police officer or 
firefighter, and felony domestic violence to be considered “nonviolent offenders.” 

(e) As a result, these so-called “non-violent” offenders are eligible for early release 
from prison after serving only a fraction of the sentence ordered by a judge. 

2. Findings

The City Council finds as follows: 

(a) This measure reforms the law so felons who violate the terms of their release 
can be brought back to court and held accountable for such violations. 

(b) Nothing in this act is intended to create additional “strike” offenses which would 
increase the state prison population, nor is it intended to affect the ability of the 
California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation to award educational and 
merit credits. 

(c) Recent changes to California law allow individuals who steal repeatedly to face 
few consequences, regardless of their criminal record or how many times they 
steal, and as a result, between 2014 and 2016, California had the 2nd highest 
increase in theft and property crimes in the United States, while most states 
have seen a steady decline. According to the California Department of Justice, 

Attachment A



Res 2018-___, Keep California Safe Act 2018   Page 2 of 3 

the value of property stolen in 2015 was $2.5 billion with an increase of 13 
percent since 2014, the largest single-year increase in at least ten years. 

(d) Grocery store operators around the state have seen unprecedented increases in 
the amount of losses associated with shoplifting in their stores, with some 
reporting up to 150% increase in these losses from 2012 to present, with the 
largest jumps occurring since 2014, and shoplifting incidents have started to 
escalate in such a manner that have endangered innocent customers and 
employees. 

(e) Individuals who repeatedly steal often do so to support their drug habit. Recent 
changes to California law have reduced judges’ ability to order individuals 
convicted of repeated theft crimes into effective drug treatment programs. 

(f) California needs stronger laws for those who are repeatedly convicted of theft 
related crimes, which will encourage those who repeatedly steal to support their 
drug problem to enter into existing drug treatment programs. This measure 
enacts such reforms. 

(g) Collecting DNA from criminals is essential to solving violent crimes. Over 450 
violent crimes including murder, rape and robbery have gone unsolved because 
DNA is being collected from fewer criminals. 

(h) Recent changes to California law unintentionally eliminated DNA collection for 
theft and drug crimes. This measure restores DNA collection from persons 
convicted for such offenses. 

(i) Permitting collection of more DNA samples will help identify suspects, clear the 
innocent and free the wrongly convicted. 

(j) This measure does not affect existing legal safeguards that protect the privacy of 
individuals by allowing for the removal of their DNA profile if they are not 
charged with a crime, are acquitted or are found innocent.   

3. Order 

The City Council of the Town of Colma herby supports the Reducing Crime and Keeping 
California Safe Act of 2018. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

 



Res 2018-___, Keep California Safe Act 2018   Page 3 of 3 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-___ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on March 14, 2018, by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Mayor      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

John Irish Goodwin       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Mayor 

 

      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report  Page 1 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brian Dossey, City Manager  
Brian Moura, Financial Services Advisor (Contract) 

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2018 

SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Report and Adjustments to FY 2017-18 Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On June 14, 2017, the City Council adopted a budget for the fiscal year which began July 1, 2017 
and ends June 30, 2018. As with any plan it is appropriate to monitor results and when 
appropriate make adjustments. The proposed Budget adjustments are presented along with the 
regular 1st Quarter and 2nd Quarter Financial Reports (Attachments B & C). In addition, with the 
completion of half the fiscal year, input was solicited from Department Directors on any trends or 
events that would warrant an adjustment to the adopted department operating budgets.    

FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of the 1st Quarter and 2nd Quarter Financial Reports and approval of the Budget 
Amendment Resolution will not alter the existence of a balanced budget. Details of the financial 
impacts are discussed as part of the report.  

BACKGROUND 
The adoption of the Town Budget is a financial plan which is based on estimates and projections. 
As such, it is appropriate to monitor the Town’s actual financial activity throughout the year and 
when appropriate formally adopt modifications to the budget. The budgeted revenue is based 
largely on historical trend information. In the case of a major revenue such as Sales Tax, the 
Town contracts with a specialized consultant to obtain detailed analysis. 

ANALYSIS 
Quarterly Financial Highlights 
Attachments B and C are the quarterly reports related to revenue and expenditures primarily in 
the General Fund during the 1st Quarter and 2nd Quarter of the 2017-18 Fiscal Year. The format 

Item #6



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report   Page 2 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

of the report is intended to provide a high-level snapshot of the fiscal performance for the Town 
operations. Staff also posts a copy on the Town website. 
 
This report focuses on the results for the second quarter which ended December 31, 2017 and 
reflects completion of 50 percent of the fiscal year (Attachment C).  
 
Total Operating Budget For Revenue and Expenditures (All Funds) 
The following provides a high-level view of the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18. This 
format helps to identify the significance of the General Fund activities compared to the special 
revenue funds and how the adopted budget included transfers between funds. 
 

  FISCAL YEAR 2017-18  
OPERATING BUDGET      

  General Fund 
(Fund 11) 

Gas Tax 
(Fund 21) 

Measure A 
(Fund 22) 

Police Grants 
(Funds 27, 29) TOTAL 

REVENUE  $17,636,197  $47,300  $50,700  $130,775  $17,864,972  
       

OTHER SOURCES OF 
FUNDING/(TRANSFERS) 

 $0     $0  
       

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS  $17,636,197  $47,300  $50,700  $130,775  $17,864,972  
       

EXPENDITURES  ($14,846,620) ($25,000) ($160,000) ($158,410) ($15,190,030) 
       

OTHER USES OF 
FUNDS/(TRANSFERS) 

      

Transfer to Capital 
Projects 

 ($888,840)    ($888,840) 

Transfer to Debt Service  ($297,070)    ($297,070) 
       

Contribution To Reserves / 
(Use of Reserves) 

 $1,603,667  $22,300  ($109,300) ($27,635) $1,489,032  

 
General Fund Revenue  
Total revenue budgeted in the General Fund is $17.6 million. The source of this revenue is highly 
concentrated among four categories (94% is represented in only four revenue types). The 
following is a table showing the Budget to Actual collections of General Fund Revenue collected 
in the four largest revenues as of December 31, 2017. 
 

  FISCAL YEAR 2017-18  

  Budget 
Fiscal Year 

2nd Qtr. 
Actual 

% of 
Budget for 

Period 
Sales Taxes  $11,150,000  $3,889,439  35% 

Cardroom Taxes  4,120,000  1,758,812  43% 

Property Taxes  613,300  296,107  48% 

Sewer Fees  740,000  370,899  50% 

Sub-Total Major Revenue  $16,623,300  $6,315,257  38% 
     

Total All Gen Fund 
Revenue 

 $17,636,197  $6,984,947   

 
% of Total Revenue 

 94% 90%  



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report   Page 3 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

 
At the mid-year point in the budget, the major revenues are coming in at or slightly above 
projections.  Two adjustments to General Fund revenues are recommended. 
 
General Fund Revenue Adjustments 
The mid-year budget adjustments include the projection of higher than expected revenues to the 
Town in two categories:  
 
Sales Tax 
With the opening of some new businesses this year, the Town’s Sales Tax consultant – HdL 
Companies – is projecting a $300,000 increase in Sales Tax revenue.   
 

• Sales Tax Revenue – Increase by $300,000 from $11,150,000 to $11,450,000 to 
reflect additional sales tax revenues to the Town from new businesses opening during 
the 2017-18 fiscal year. 

 
Revenues From Other Agencies 
After the 2017-18 Budget was adopted, the Town entered into a 2-year agreement with the 
County to maintain Colma Creek.  This services agreement is capped at $100,000 over the 2-year 
period with a review of the program after that time.  
 
To date, the Town has received $28,500 in reimbursements from the County for this work.  It is 
anticipated that the cost of these services – and the reimbursement from the County will reach 
$50,000 during the 2017-18 Fiscal year. To account for this reimbursement revenue, the mid-
year budget adjustment includes adding a new revenue account for these reimbursements and 
an estimate for such revenues.  
 

• Reimbursement For Public Works Maintenance Services – Create a new revenue 
account to receive reimbursements for Public Works Maintenance Services provided to 
other agencies.  Estimated revenue in this account will be $50,000 during the 2017-18 
Fiscal Year. 

 
General Fund Expenditures   
The total budget for General Fund operating expenditures is approximately $14.8 million. At the 
mid-point of the year overall expense is approximately 53% of the budgeted amount.  
 

  FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSE  Budget 
Fiscal Year 

2nd Qtr. 
Actual 

% of 
Budget 

for Period 
General Government  $3,286,620  $1,795,581  55% 

Police  6,816,610  3,611,376  53% 
Engineering / Building / 
Planning 

 1,306,410  423,208  32% 

Public Works Maintenance  1,854,000  1,255,634  68% 

Recreation Services  985,400  519,686  53% 

Facility Maintenance  597,580  224,517  38% 

TOTAL  $14,846,620  $7,830,002  53% 

 
 



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report   Page 4 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

All Department Directors completed additional review of the performance of individual 
Department budgets for the first six months. Although minor deviations may have occurred most 
can be balanced between savings in one-line item compared to a small overage in another.  
 
The budget year to date overall is tracking as expected with half the year complete. Variances 
above 50% for General Government; Police; and Recreation are mostly due to pre-payment of 
the PERS contributions for Retirement at the beginning of the fiscal year and seven months of 
medical premiums. The Public Works Maintenance category reflects the expense in the first 
quarter of the full annual sewer service charges. The Engineering / Building / Planning category 
is primarily contract services and there can be a lag in the billing which results in less than half 
the budget being expended to date. 
 
General Fund Expenditure Adjustments 
Additional appropriations are required in the following two accounts in the General Fund which 
are also detailed on the Budget Change form included with the Resolution.  
 

• Drainage & Flood Control Maintenance – Increase by $50,000 from $35,000 to 
$85,000 to cover the cost of Colma Creek maintenance under contract with San Mateo 
County. This expense is completely offset by reimbursement from the County 
mentioned earlier. 

 
• Human Resources - Sick Leave Cash Out – With the upcoming retirement of the 

Human Resources Manager, the Town will cash out the remaining sick leave balance 
for this employee.  This is estimated at 441 hours which will require a supplemental 
appropriation of $26,425. 

 
• Contribution to Retiree Medical Trust – The Town has a Retiree Medical Trust to 

offset liabilities for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - Retiree Medical and 
Retiree Dental benefits.  In the 2017-18 Adopted Budget, $1,209,564 will be 
contributed to the Town’s Retiree Medical Trust.  This figure was set by using an 
actuarial study by Bickmore from 2014 and increasing the 2016-17 contribution 
amount by 10%.  The contributions are collected through monthly charges to each 
Town department based on that department’s % of Town employees.   
 
An updated actuarial study was completed in September 2017.  It sets the Town’s 
2017-18 Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) at $1,610,173.  The recommended 
mid-year adjustments include an additional $400,609 in contributions to meet this 
contribution level.   
 

Summary General Fund Balance After Proposed Adjustments 
The Table below shows the changes in General Fund Reserve Balance as presented in the Adopted 
Budget compared to updated numbers based on the Mid-Year Report. This includes the use of 
the updated beginning balance based on the June 30, 2017 audit report. 
  



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report   Page 5 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

 
The Town continues to have a strong financial foundation. The revised budget will result in an 
increase of $350,000 in revenues (Sales Tax and Public Works Maintenance reimbursements) and 
an increase of $479,109 in expenses (Drainage Maintenance under Contract with the County, Sick 
Leave Cash out for a retiring employee and Increased Contributions to the Town Retiree Medical 
Trust).  The balance will allow the Town Council to consider addressing in the future one-time 
infrastructure needs in the Capital Projects Budget as well as financial planning for outstanding 
liabilities.   
 

 
 
Reasons For the Recommended Action 
The adoption by the City Council of a mid-year budget adjustment is an appropriate level of fiscal 
control demonstrating the sound use of public funds.  

 
 
  



Staff Report re Mid-Year Budget Report   Page 6 of 6 
March 14, 2018 

 
COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public involvement. 

ALTERNATIVES 
The information as presented has been at a high level. An alternative would be to request that 
staff return with a more detailed presentation of individual line items with analysis by the 
departments. This would need to be prepared for a future meeting and it would not be expected 
to result in significant budget changes beyond those discussed in this report. 

CONCLUSION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution approving the budget 
changes. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution Amending Budget Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2017-18 
B. 1st Quarter Financial Report 
C. 2nd Quarter Financial Report  

 



 Res. 2018-##, Amending 2017-18 Budget (Adopted #/##/2018) Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background

(a) The City Council adopted a budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18, on June 14, 2017; and

(b) On March 14, 2018 at a public meeting the City Council received a Mid-Year Financial
Report, which analyzed Revenue and Expenditures over the first six months of the Fiscal Year; 
and 

(c) The Mid-Year Report identified various adjustments required to the budgeted 
appropriations based on updated estimates. 

(d) The adopted Budget policy provides that the City Council shall approve the budget 
amendments identified in the report. 

(e) The approval of the Budget Adjustment shall continue to result in a balanced budget 
with current year General Fund Operating Revenue exceeding the amount of current Year 
General Fund Operating Expenses; and 

(f) The Budget Adjustment creates a new revenue account in the General Fund to receive 
Reimbursement For Public Works Maintenance Services. 

(g) The Budget Adjustment provides for increased General Fund revenues in the Sales Tax 
and Reimbursement For Public Works Maintenance Services accounts. 

(h) The Budget Adjustments also provides for increased expenditures for Drainage and 
Flood Control Maintenance, Human Resources Sick Leave Cash Out and Contribution to the 
Town Retiree Medical Trust. 

(i) The City Council has duly considered the Staff Report and public comments, if any, 
thereon. 

2. Finding

The City Council finds that based on changes since the Original Budget was adopted that it is 
appropriate to have the City Council approve an adjustment to the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Colma 
Adopted Budget. The City Council finds that the total expenditures in the 2017-18 Budget, after 
the proposed amendment does not exceed the appropriations limits for fiscal year 2017-18, which 
is $40,614,129.26. 

3. Amendment to Budget

(a) The Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget is amended as shown in the schedule attached as Exhibit
A and by reference incorporated herein. 

Attachment A



  
Res. 2018-##, Amending 2017-18 Budget (Adopted #/##/2018) Page 2 of 3 
 

(b) The City Manager shall insure that the changes are incorporated in the official Finance 
and Accounting systems as summarized in Exhibit A.  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on March 14, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      

Joanne del Rosario, Vice Mayor       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro       

John Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:  ____________________________ 
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Res. 2018-##, Amending 2017-18 Budget (Adopted #/##/2018) Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
FIRST QUARTER 2017-18 

(July 1, 2017 – September 30, 2017) 

Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 1 FY 2017-18) Page 1 of 4 

This report provides an overview and summarized information on the Town Finances. For the Town of 
Colma, the General Fund represents the most significant portion of the annual revenue and 
expenditures. Therefore, the focus of the report will be on the performance of the General Fund, unless 
otherwise noted. The format of the report compares preliminary data from the Prior Year actual results 
to the Current Year Budget / Quarterly Actual.  

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL POSITION 
In Fiscal Year 2017-18, the General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $17.6 million 
and budgeted expenditures of $14.8 million. In addition, the General Fund has net budgeted transfers 
of approximately $1.1 million. A transfer represents resources in one fund that are transferred to 
another fund. The primary transfers in the current year budget are for Capital Project funding 
($888,840) and Debt Service ($297,070). 

MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES 
Over 90 percent of the budgeted General Fund Revenues are concentrated in four revenue types. 
Revenues collected are not evenly distributed from month to month.  

As shown in the previous table only 11% of the expected General Fund Revenue was collected in the 
first quarter of the Fiscal Year. A narrative explanation is provided below for key deviations. 

Attachment B



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 1 FY 2017-18)  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
MAJOR REVENUE (Continued) 

• Sales Tax revenue in the first quarter represents mostly advances received. The first full 
quarter of Sales Tax revenue payments occur in the following quarter.  

• Cardroom taxes collected in the first quarter are running slightly ahead of last year. This is 
also reflected in the higher revenue estimate for these taxes in the 2017-18 Budget. 

• Sewer Fees are collected on the Property Tax bill. The majority of payments collected on 
the Property Tax bill are received in December and April. 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
First quarter expenditures are slightly higher on an actual basis but lower on a percent of budget 
basis when compared to the prior fiscal year.  

Comparison of Expenditures by Program Area 

 

• Engineering / Planning / and Building are contract services and there can be differences in 
timing of the payments.  
 

The following table also displays the expenses organized by expenditure type. 

 

Overall the expenditures for the first quarter are expected to trend within the adopted budget by the 
end of the fiscal year. Information related to significant deviations are discussed below:    

• As shown in the previous table salaries and benefits are the most significant portion of General 
Fund expenditures.  



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 1 FY 2017-18)  Page 3 of 4 
 

• Contract services include a variety of professional as well as service contracts associated 
with providing Town services. 

• Sewer Service Charges are near the full budgeted amount after the first quarter. This is a 
typical pattern as the collection and treatment system payments to the providers are made 
in the first quarter of the Fiscal Year. 

• Insurance costs are near the full budgeted amount after the first quarter. This is a typical 
pattern as most of these costs are insurance premiums. The premium payment is due in the 
first month of the Fiscal Year. 
 

ADDITIONAL DETAILS AND INFORMATION 
This format was prepared by the Finance Department to highlight in summary fashion key indicators of 
the Town Financial performance.  

Additional Financial Reports and Budgets – including earlier Quarterly Financial Reports, Audits and 
Budgets – are also available on the Town website www.colma.ca.gov .  

This report will also be posted on the Town website after it has been reviewed by the City Council. 

HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY – ALL FUNDS 
The final page of this report includes a Table summarizing “All Funds” and their activity for the first 
quarter. This report prepared by the Finance Department highlights in summary fashion key indicators 
of the Town Financial performance.  

As mentioned earlier the General Fund is the most significant to the operations of the Town. However, 
it is also appropriate to consider the other sources of funding. As shown the balance held in Capital 
Project Funds is over $15 million.  

 

 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/


 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 1 FY 2017-18)  Page 4 of 4 
 

 

  

 

 



QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
SECOND QUARTER 2017-18 

(October 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017) 

Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 2 FY 2017-18) Page 1 of 4 
March 7, 2018 

This report provides an overview and summarized information on Town Finances. For the Town of 
Colma, the General Fund represents the most significant portion of the annual revenue and 
expenditures. Therefore, the focus of the report will be on the performance of the General Fund, unless 
otherwise noted. The format of the report compares preliminary data from the Prior Year actual results 
to the Current Year Budget / Quarterly Actual.  

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL POSITION 
In Fiscal Year 2017-18, the General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $17.6 million 
and budgeted expenditures of $14.8 million. In addition, the General Fund has budgeted transfers of 
$1.1 million. A transfer represents resources in one fund that are transferred to another fund. The 
primary transfers in the current year budget are for Capital Project funding ($888,840) and Debt Service 
($297,070). 

MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES 
More than 90 percent of the budgeted General Fund Revenues are concentrated in four revenue types. 
Revenues collected are not evenly distributed from month to month. 

As shown in the previous table approximately 40 percent of the General Fund Revenue was collected 
in the first six months of the fiscal year. A narrative explanation is provided below for key deviations. 

Attachment C



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 2 FY 2017-18)  Page 2 of 4 
 

MAJOR REVENUE (Continued) 
• Sales Tax revenue represents actual retail transactions through September 30th plus 

advances received for the second quarter from the Board of Equalization. Based on input 
from the Town’s Sales Tax Consultant (HdL) an increase in the Budgeted Sales Tax revenue 
is recommended as part of the Mid-Year Adjustments due to revenue from new businesses. 

• Cardroom taxes can fluctuate from year to year based on a variety of factors. Through the 
first six months this revenue source is slightly ahead of last year’s revenues at this time last 
year. 

• Property taxes for the current year reflect the first of two major installments. The amount 
recorded is slightly ahead of last year’s collections and on track for this time in the fiscal 
year. 

• Sewer Fees are collected on the Property Tax bill. The fees represent the first of two major 
installments received from Property Tax payments. The revenues are on target for this 
quarter. 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
Overall, expenditures compared to the prior year performance through the second quarter, total 
expenses were similar in the current year (FY 2017 = 54% and FY 2018 = 53%).  

COMPARISON OF EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM AREA 

 

The following table also displays the expenses organized by expenditure type. 

 

  



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 2 FY 2017-18)  Page 3 of 4 
 

Overall the expenditures for the second quarter are expected to trend within the adopted budget. 
Information related to significant deviations are discussed below:    

• As shown in the previous table salaries and benefits are the most significant portion of 
General Fund expenditures. A significant factor which contributes to expenses above 50% 
after two quarters is the pre-payment of PERS retirement contribution. By depositing a lump 
sum amount in July instead of monthly payments the Town is able to take advantage of a 
discount. 

• Contract services include a variety of professional as well as service contracts associated 
with providing Town services. There can sometimes be a lag in the billing from the service 
provider. 

• Infrastructure Maintenance Contract Service costs can be impacted by weather and are not 
typically distributed throughout the year. 

• Sewer Service costs are over 90% of the budget. This is a typical pattern as the collection 
and treatment system payments to the providers are made early in the Fiscal Year. The 
remainder of the budgeted expenses would be associated with maintenance expense on the 
system during the year. 

• A significant portion of the Insurance expense has been incurred. This is a typical pattern 
as most of these costs are insurance premiums. The premium payment for liability and 
property insurance is due in the first month of the Fiscal Year. 

 
ADDITIONAL GENERAL FUND DETAILS AND INFORMATION 
This reporting format was prepared by the Finance Department to highlight in summary fashion key 
indicators of the Town General Fund Financial performance.  

Additional Financial Reports – including earlier Quarterly Financial Reports, Audits and Budgets are 
available on the Town website at www.colma.ca.gov.  

This report will be posted on the Town website after it has been reviewed by the City Council. 

 
HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY – ALL FUNDS 
The Table below provides a summary of “All Funds” and their activity for the two quarters ending 
December 31, 2017. This report highlights in summary fashion key indicators of the Town Financial 
performance.  

As mentioned earlier the General Fund is the most significant fund when it comes to the operations of 
the Town, however, it is also appropriate to consider the other sources of funding. As shown the balance 
held in Capital Project Funds is $14.3 million after expenses and revenues to date in the 2017-18 fiscal 
year.  

 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/


 
Quarterly Financial Report (Quarter 2 FY 2017-18)  Page 4 of 4 
 

 


	03.14.18 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Regular Minutes - 02.28.18
	2. Report of Checks Paid - February
	3. Notice of Award - Access Control Project
	A. Resolution - Access Control
	B. VAS Bid Package - Lowest Responsive Bid

	4. 2017 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report
	A. 2017 Annual Report on the Implementation of the Housing Element, including Tables A-C
	B. 2017 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Remaining Elements

	5. Keeping California Safe Act of 2018
	A. Resolution - Keep California Safe Act

	6. Mid Year Budget Report and Adjustments to FY 2017-18
	A. Resolution - Amending 2017-18 Budget Appropriations and Transfers
	B. 1st Quarter Financial Report - July to September 2017
	C. 2nd Quarter Financial Report - July to December 2017




